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Shovers, Marc

From: Doty, Kelsie

Sent: Friday, June 11, 1999 9:45 AM
To: Shovers, Marc

Subject: Income tax drafting request

| have six items that need drafts. Gi

-~

1. Paper #100 -- Alt 2. Maintain the current law tax treatment of social security benefits.

2. _..-Paper#101~Alt-2-Retair-indexing ot the.income-tax-brackets:Start-indeXing the newly creatdd toptax-bracket in_

26@1. ,
3. M@he provisions of Substitute Amendment 1 to SB 49 (filing thresholds).
—

) Paper #7086 =- Alt 1 (as modified). Approve the Governor's recommendation to eliminat&miscellaneous itemized
eductions with two charges. '

a. Continue to allow professional dues and union dues to be inctdded as a miscellaneous itemized deduction
under the credit. ., ) ' v

b. Create a subtract modificatio om federal AGl for the amount claimed as a federal miscellaneous
itemized deduction for repayment of income that wasdeaxed in a prior year. Specify that the amount claimed under the
claim of right credit can not be claimed under the“Subtraetion.

5. Paper #108 -- Alt 1. Mgdifﬂgcurrent indexing provisian to incorporate the federal indexing method into state
law. Specifically, elimipatefﬁgmaximum income amounts for the stamgdard deduction from the statutes and specify that the

| tax brackets a'ggisféﬁdard deduction be indexed based on the 1998 amdunfs.
P ‘

6. Motion #1407. Modify current law as it relates to the taxation of inter ViO SLusts. I'll fax over a copy of the mgtion

and the language that the lobbyist attempted to draft.

Kelsie Doty

Fiscal Analyst

Legislative Fiscal Bureau

1 East Main St., Suite 301
Madison, W! 53703

Phone: (608) 266-3847

Fax: (608) 267-6873
Kelsie.Doty @legis.state.wi.us



Legislative Fiscal Bureau
One East Main, Suite 301 « Madison, WI 53703 « (60R) 266-3847 » Fax: (608) 267-6873

June 7, 1999 Joint Committee on Finance Paper #100

Individual Income Tax Modifications: Taxation of Social Security Benefits
(General Fund Taxes -- Individual and Corporate Income Taxes)

[LFB 1999-01 Budget Summary: Page 20, #1}

CURRENT LAW K

Wisconsin currently follows pre-1994 federal law and taxes up to 50% of social security
benefits for taxpayers with provisional income above the following thresholds: $25,000 if single,
$32,000 if married-joint and zero if married-separate. The taxable portion is the lesser of: (a)
one-half of net social security benefits; or (b) one-half of the amount by which provisional
income exceeds the threshold amount. Provisional income is defined as one-half of social
security plus federal adjusted gross income (AGI), tax-exempt interest and other specified
amounts that are excluded from gross income. No benefits are taxed for taxpayers with
provisional income below these threshold amounts.

The federal taxation of social security was modified under the Revenue Reconciliation
Act of 1993, which increased the amount of taxable social security benefits from 50% to 85% for
* taxpayers with income above a higher threshold level beginning in 1994. The pre-1994 law still
applies to taxpayers with income below $34,000 if single and $44,000 if married filing a joint
return. However, the taxable portion of social security for taxpayers with provisional income
above these thresholds is the lesser of: (a) 85% of social security; or (b) the amount included
under the 1993 law (not to exceed $4,500 if single and $6,000 if married-joint) plus 85% of the
excess of provisional income over the income thresholds. Married taxpayers who file separate
returns pay taxes on up to 85% of social security benefits.

The following table summarizes the taxation of social security under current state law
and under federal law for single and married-joint taxpayers, based on income.
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Taxable Portion Under Taxable Portion Under

Provisional Income Current State Law Federal Law

$0 to $25,000 if Single

$0 to $32,000 if Married-Joint None : None

$25,000 to $34,000 if Single

$32,000 to $44,000 if Married-Joint Up to 50% Up to 50%

$34,000 and Over if Single :

$44,000 and Over if Married-Joint Up to 50% -Up to 85%
GOVERNOR

Federalize the treatment of social security benefits and tax up to 85% of social security
for taxpayers with provisional income above $34,000 if single and $44,000 if married-joint and
for all married-separate taxpayers. Taxpayers with income below these amounts would not be
impacted by the modification.

DISCUSSION POINTS

1. One of the tax policy principles to be considered in structuring an individual income
tax is the goal of tax equity, which holds that the tax structure should provide equal treatment of
equals and include only reasonable differences in the taxation of unequals. Specifically, the
principle of horizontal equity indicates that taxpayers with the same amount of economic income
should pay the same amount of tax. Economic income may be adjusted to reflect distinctions for
lesser ability to pay taxes, such as unusual medical expenses and casualty losses, or to recognize the
higher subsistence costs of taxpayers with large families.

2. It could be argued that both the current state and federal tax treatments of social
security benefits violate the principle of horizontal equity because taxpayers with social security
income do not pay taxes on all of their income, while a taxpayer with the same total income that is
comprised entirely of wages does not receive a similar exclusion. On the other hand, the complete
exclusion for social security that is provided to lower-income taxpayers and the partial exclusion
provided to upper-income taxpayers could be considered an adjustment to reflect a lesser ability to
pay that is typically associated with social security recipients who may have relatively high medical
expenses and fixed incomes.

3. A rationale for the current state tax treatment of social security for higher-income
taxpayers is that one-half of a worker’s combined payroll tax is paid by the employer from before-
tax income. The other half is paid by the employe from after-tax earnings. Therefore, higher-income
taxpayers are currently taxed on the social security payments attributable to the employer’s before-
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tax contributions. On the other hand, since retirees generally receive more in benefits than they
contributed into the system, it could be argued that increasing the share of taxable social security for
retirees with higher income would not impose an undue burden. The rationale used at the federal
level when increasing the taxable share to 85% was that the 15% nontaxable share was roughly
comparable to the portion of other pension benefits that were not subject to taxation (the portion
attributable to after-tax contributions), as estimated at that time by the Congressional Budget Office.

4. Of the 43 states, plus the District of Columbia, that imposed an individual income
tax in 1997, 29 exempted all social security benefits from taxation. Fifteen states taxed a portion of
social security benefits as follows: three, including Wisconsin, taxed up to 50% of benefits as under
pre-1994 federal law; nine followed current federal practice and taxed up to 85%; and three states
provided their own taxation scheme. No state taxed 100% of social security benefits.

5. Exempting all social security benefits from taxation would reduce income tax
revenues by an estimated $66.5 million each year from current law. As compared to the bill, this
would reduce revenues by $98.2 million on an annualized basis.

6. Since the current state treatment of social security does not conform with federal
‘law, taxpayers with income above the higher threshold amounts ($34,000 if single, $44,000 if
married-joint and zero if married-separate) are required to complete a separate state worksheet to
calculate the difference. The federal worksheet that must be used by most taxfilers with social
security income for the 1998 tax year contains 18 steps. The state’s social security benefits
worksheet requires six steps to be completed to calculate the amount of benefits to be subtracted
from federal AGI to determine Wisconsin AGI. Federalizing the treatment of social security would
simplify the state tax form for affected taxfilers and the Department.

7. According to data from the Social Security Administration, a total of $7,534 million
in social security benefits was paid to Wisconsin residents in 1997. The 1997 Wisconsin tax sample
shows that 155.000 Wisconsin residents paid federal taxes on $1,121 million in benefits. For state
tax purposes, 95,000 taxpayers subtracted $365.4 million from the federally taxable amount. State
taxes were paid on $756 million in benefits.

8. Federalizing the calculation of taxable social security benefits may result in high
marginal tax rates on other sources of income for affected taxpayers. For example, under current
law, a married couple with $16,000 of social security benefits is not required to include any of these
benefits in taxable income if other sources of provisional income are $24,000 or less. Once other
sources of provisional income equal $24,000 for these taxpayers (total provisional income equals
$32,000), the amount of taxable social security is phased up until it reaches $8,000 when other
provisional income is $40,000 or more (the phase-in range is based on the amount of social security
benefits and other provisional income and therefore is different for each taxpayer). In this phase-in
range, each additional dollar of income from other sources is taxed as if it were $1.50. This effect
would be enhanced under the bill because, in the new phase-in range, each additional dollar of
income would be taxed as if it were $1 85_Tt is argued that these provisions create a disincentive for
social security recipients to work and penalize individuals who saved for retirement.
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9. In addition to federalizing the treatment of social security benefits, the Governor
recommends a number of other modifications to the state’s individual income tax, including
increasing the sliding scale standard deduction, creating personal exemptions, creating a fourth
income tax bracket, reducing the income tax rates, eliminating miscellaneous deductions from the
itemized deduction credit, increasing the married couple credit, eliminating certain income tax
credits and expanding the homestead credit. Many of the tax reduction provisions would offset the
effects of the social security provision and even result in a tax decrease for some taxpayers. The
other bill provisions are discussed further in separate issue papers prepared by this office.

10.  Attachments 1 and 2 to this paper provide distributional information on the
Governor’s income tax proposal on taxpayers affected by the social security provision for tax years
2000 and 2001, respectively. This information is from the 1997 Wisconsin tax sample, which has

data from over 20,000 tax returns, weighted to reflect all taxpayers in 1997. However, changes over =~~~

time in the number of taxpayers and the kinds and amounts of income, deductions and credits they
claim cannot be shown. To the extent possible, changes in tax laws between 1997 and later years
have been included.

11.  The following table compares all taxpayers with a tax decrease or tax increase under
the individual income tax modifications recommended by the Governor to only those who would be
impacted by the social security provision. As shown in the table for the 2001 tax year, about 87% of
all taxpayers would have a tax decrease under the bill and 13% would have a tax increase. In
contrast, only 29.2% of taxpayers affected by the social security provision would have a tax
deercasc and 70.8% would pay more taxes. Taxpaycrs affected by the social security provision
make up 26.8% of all taxpayers with a tax increase in 2001.

Count of Count of

All Taxpayers _ Taxpayers Affected
Affected by Percent of by Social Percent of - Percent of
Governor’s Proposal Total Security Provision Total  All Taxpayers
Tax Year 2000 :
Tax Decrease 1,532,000 80.2% 17,900 19.1% 1.2%
Tax Increase 378.400 _19.8 75,800 80.9 20.0
Total © 1,910,400 100.0% 93,700 100.0% 4.9%
Tax Year 2001
Tax Decrease 1,667,000 87.0% 27,400 29.2% 1.6%
Tax Increase 248.300 13.0 66.300 708 26.8
Total 1,915,300 100.0% 93,700 100.0% 4.9%

12.  Deleting the social security provision from the Governor’s budget recommendation
and retaining the current law tax treatment of social security would reduce income tax revenues by
$32.4 million in tax year 2000 and $32.2 million in tax year 2001 (in 2000 dollars) from the bill. It
should be noted that due to the interaction of the various income tax modifications, the fistal effect
of this change would differ if other revisions are made to the Governor’s proposal.
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ALTERNATIVES TO BILL

L. Approve the Governor’s recommendation to federalize the treatment of social
security benefits.
2. Retain the current state income tax treatment of social security benefits. Compared

to the bill, this would reduce income tax revenues by $32.4 million in 2000-01 if the other income
tax provisions recommended by the Governor are not modified. '

Alternative 2 GPR
1999-01 REVENUE (Change to Bill) - $32,400,000

Prepared by: Kelsie Doty
Attachments
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State of Wisconsin
1999 - 2000 LEGISLATURE - LRBb0664/1

%‘aﬁy Cine)

LFB.......Doty — Maintain current tax law treatment of social security

FOR 1999-01 BUDGET — NoT READY FOR INTRODUCTION
LFB AMENDMENT

TO 1999 ASSEMBLY BILL 133 AND 1999 SENATE BILL 45

At the locations indicated, amend the bill as follows:

v v
1. Page 842, line 23: delete that line.

v v/ v
2. Page 1461, line 20: delete “, 71.05 (6) (b) 21.”.

(END)
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LFB...... Doty — Maintain current tax law treatment of social security
For 1999-01 BUDGET — NoT READY FOR INTRODUCTION
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
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